
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
June 7, 2018 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Christine Hanley, Acting Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Board President Pip Marquez de la Plata 
at 6:30 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 
p.m.) 


(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Marquez de la Plata reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Schaap 
suspended approval of Item III-B., Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT 
payments pending discussion re: the $16,000.00 payment to SDRMA.  Director Robb-Wilder 
moved to approve the remaining items on the consent calendar.  President Marquez de la Plata 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0, except Directors Robb-Wilder and Holmer abstained from voting on 
Item III-A (Minutes of the March 1, 2018 meeting) as they were absent from that meeting.  In 
addition, 
Director Marquez de la Plata abstained from voting on Item III-A (Minutes of the May 3, 2018 
meeting) as he was absent from that meeting.  The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 1, 2018 Board Meeting and the May 3, 
2018 


 Board Meeting 
 


 1







B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments with the 
exception of Check 9532 in the amount of $16,069.93 to SDRMA.  


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence (None.) 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:45 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:45 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Water Service Modeling 


Results. The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No 
action was taken. 


 
 
V-B. (7:00 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re:  District Vision and Dental Benefits Plan Change. 


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Direction given to Staff 
to get documentation from County of Sonoma defining why they are removing small 
Districts from their vision and dental group.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:10 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville Rainfall and Russian River Flow 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project 
6. 2018 CIP 
7. Water Tax 
8. In-House Construction Projects 
9. Small Claims Court Action 
10. Gantt Chart 
 
Discussion ensued.   
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(7:50 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Holmer announced that he would be absent from the July Board meeting. He also 


requested a Resolution in support of him running for re-election to LAFCO. 
 
2. Director Holmer and the General Manager will be attending a SCWA meeting at the Monte 


Rio Community Center on June 26, 2018 re: Sewer Lateral issues. 
 
3. Director Marquez de La Plata is hosting an event at Forgotten Felines on June 14, 2018 


from 4 – 7 pm at 1814 Empire Industrial Court, Santa Rosa, CA to celebrate Congressional 
Recognition of Forgotten Felines for their exceptional work during the fires last year. 


 
 


 2







 3


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:00 p.m.) 
At 8:00 p.m. President Marquez de la Plata announced the items for discussion in Closed 
Session.  At 8:01 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session. 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant 
to subdivision (d)(2) of Gov. Code Section 54956.9 based on Small Claims 
Court complaint filed by Susan Levinson and subsequent Claim received on 
May 28, 2018 (one potential case) Case No.: MSO-188694 


 Direction was given to Staff. 
 
B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
 Property at 15370 River Road (APN 070-120-018)  
 Agency negotiator Steve Mack  
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Mark Miller. 
 Direction was given to Staff. 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:07 p.m.) 
 
1. Guernewood Park Resort 
2. SDRMA Charges / Waller Claim 
3. Vision & Dental Plans 
4. Small Claims Court 
5. Water Tax Bill AB263 
6. Real Property Negotiation 
7. Resolution in Support of Director Holmer Re-election to LAFCO 
8. 2018 CIP 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Christine M. Hanley 
Acting Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:45 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:45 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:10 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(7:50 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:00 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


July 5, 2018, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 7, 2018 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
D. Approval of Resolution 18-09,nominating and supporting Director Richard 


Holmer's Re-election to LAFCO 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort project - Water Supply Modeling 


progress.  (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re District vision and dental insurance changes (Est. time 10 


min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Payment to SDRMA for legal expense. (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Review of Fiscal Year 2017-18 (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
 Property at 15370 River Road (APN 070-120-018)  
 Agency negotiator Steve Mack  
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Mark Miller. 


 
IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: July 5, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 18-09 NOMINATING AND 
SUPPORTING DIRECTOR HOLMER FOR LAFCO  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 18-09 which nominates and supports 
Richard Holmer, Board of Directors, for the Local Area Formation Commission (LAFCO).    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) was created by State law in 1963 
to regulate the boundaries of cities and special districts.  The Commission is 
comprised of seven regular members and four alternate members. The regular 
members are: 
 


 Two members elected by the City Selection Committee of the Mayors and 
Councilmembers’ Association from among the nine cities’ mayors and 
councilmembers, 


 Two members appointed by the Chair of the County Board of Supervisors from 
among their membership, 


 Two members elected by the Independent Special Districts from among the 
members of the boards of directors of the districts, and 


 One member appointed by the Commission from the public. The public 
member and alternate public member cannot be a current officer or employee 
of the County of Sonoma or of any city or special district located in Sonoma 
County 


 
 Richard Holmer has been a special District member and his term is up.  LAFCO requests 
that the District nominate him for a second term if it so wishes.  Resolution 18-09 does 
that and also provides a statement of support.   







Resolution No. 18-09 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT NOMINATING AND SUPPORTING RICHARD 


HOLMER FOR LAFCO  
  
 


WHEREAS, Richard Holmer is a Board Member in good standing of Sweetwater 
Springs Water District; and 
 
WHEREAS, Richard Holmer has been a member of LAFCO for four years, his term has 
expired and he would like to continue serving on LAFCO; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Area Formation Commission (LAFCO) requires that the special 
district for which a potential LAFCO member serves nominate the potential LAFCO 
member; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs finds that Richard Holmer has been a good member of 
LAFCO during his four years of service.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District adopts the following:  
 
1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District nominates Richard Holmer for LAFCO as 
a special District member. 
 
2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District supports the re-election of Richard 
Holmer to LAFCO. 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on July 5, 2018, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Pip Marquez de la Plata 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







 





		Item III-D - Rich Holmer LAFO Resolution

		Item III-D.1 - RES 18-09 Rich Holmer LAFCO2






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: July 5, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: GUERNEWOOD PARK RESORT WATER SERVICE MODELLING 
RESULTS  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding the progress on computer modeling the Guernewood Park Resort request for 
water service from the District and provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Guernewood Park Resort (Resort) is a proposed hotel/motel with a reported 120 
rooms and a restaurant which is located next to the Dubrava Condominiums and 
Hulburt Creek in Guernewood Park.   Coastland Engineering is developing a model to 
determine whether the District's Guerneville System can supply water to the Resort 
without impacting existing District operations.   
 
The modeling results appear to show that the District can meet the ordinary water 
supply demand for the Project but the District has insufficient storage for the fireflow 
requirements.  This is a similar statement from what we have believed about this 
project for some time (since before I came here); this modeling has refined that 
amount.  It appears we need additional storage of approximately 530,000 gallons.     
 
The first question is that amount of storage appears to defy common sense - we 
would need to increase our storage in the Guerneville System by 45% to meet the 
fireflow demand.  The Project is not that large, to our thinking.  We are asking 
Coastland for more explanation for this.    
 
The next, obvious question is how to provide that additional storage.  Coastland will 
be giving us recommendations on that; perhaps I will have something to present to 
the Board at the July meeting.  One issue with the additional storage is how to add it 
and still have adequate circulation in whatever storage tank(s) is(are) built.  Another 
question is where to put it.   
 
 
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: July 5, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: DISTRICT VISION AND DENTAL BENEFIT PLAN CHANGES; 
APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 18-10 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding changes to the District vision and dental benefit plans, approve Resolution 
18-10 which authorizes the General Manager to enroll the District in the new Delta 
Dental and VSP plans, and provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $650 for FY 2018-19.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District vision and dental plans have been purchased in the past as an affiliate of the 
County of Sonoma.  Approximately two months ago the County told us we would 
have to get our own plans as of June 1, 2018 because we are not legally connected 
to them (that's my understanding of the reason).  Recently they told us we could 
stay on their plan for two additional months while we are getting new coverage. 
 
We have been looking into this, and we had a broker giving us some options.  Our 
intention is to get plans that are similar (at least as good as) to what we all have 
now at no additional cost to staff and at a minimal cost increase, if necessary to the 
District.  
 
At the June meeting we first presented this issue and discussed dental and vision 
options provided by the broker that would have cost the District approximately $392 
more each month than we are currently paying.  Since that meeting, we have 
learned that the Special District Risk Management Association (SDRMA) also offers 
dental and vision plans to their members and at cheaper prices.  SDRMA offers a 
number of coverage levels for both dental and vision, but we are recommending 
programs that will provide similar or better coverage for District employees with only 
a slight increase in premium costs: 
 


Dental:  An premium increase of $50.52 each month.  Employees would 
take on an annual deductible ($50/person), but would get a higher 
annual maximum, better coverage on major dental work, and expand 
orthodontic coverage to include adults. 
 
Vision:  An premium increase of $2.09 each month.  Employees would 
take on a $25 co-pay with about the same coverages. 
 







Vision and Dental Plan Changes, Resolution 18-10 2  
July 5, 2018 


It should be noted that the Union contract requires that these plans be made 
available to staff at no additional cost to them.  Further, our current plans cost the 
same per employee regardless of family size.  All the new plans charge premiums 
that vary based on family size.  The estimates above are based on current staff 
family demographics. 
 
Resolution 18-10 authorizes the General Manager to execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding with SDRMA that allows us to participate in their heath benefits 
programs.  With the Board's approval staff would like to proceed with enrollment in 
the vision and dental plans outline above.  We need to resolve this soon because 
SDRMA requires a 45 day enrollment wait period after execution of the MOU, which 
means the earliest our coverage under the new plans would start is September 1.  
Thus far the County has been amenable to us remaining with their plan, but it is 
unknown how long we'll be able to do this. 







 


 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 


 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE (GOVERNING BODY) OF Sweetwater Springs Water District 
APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE 
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY’S HEALTH BENEFITS 


PROGRAM 


WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District, a public agency duly organized and existing under and by virtue of 
the laws of the State of California (the “ENTITY”), has determined that it is in the best interest and to the advantage 
of the ENTITY to participate in Health Benefits offered by the Special District Risk Management Authority (the 
“Authority”); and  


WHEREAS, the Authority was formed in 1986 in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code 
6500 et seq., for the purpose of providing risk financing, risk management programs and other coverage protection 
programs; and 


WHEREAS, participation in Authority programs requires the ENTITY to execute and enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding which states the purpose and participation requirements for Health Benefits; and 


WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the laws of the State of California to exist, to have happened 
and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the consummation of the transactions authorized 
hereby do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by 
law, and the ENTITY is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and every requirement of law, to 
consummate such transactions for the purpose, in the manner and upon the terms herein provided. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE ENTITY AS 
FOLLOWS: 


Section 1. Findings.  The ENTITY’s Governing Body hereby specifically finds and determines that the actions 
authorized hereby relate to the public affairs of the ENTITY. 


Section 2. Memorandum of Understanding.  The Memorandum of Understanding, to be executed and entered into 
by and between the ENTITY and the Authority, in the form presented at this meeting and on file with the ENTITY’s 
Secretary, is hereby approved.  The ENTITY’s Governing Body and/or Authorized Officers (“The Authorized 
Officers”) are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the ENTITY, to execute and 
deliver to the Authority the Memorandum of Understanding. 


Section 3. Program Participation.  The ENTITY’s Governing Body approves participating in the Special District 
Risk Management Authority’s Health Benefits Program. 


Section 4. Other Actions.  The Authorized Officers of the ENTITY are each hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and deliver any and all documents which are necessary in order to consummate the transactions authorized 
hereby and all such actions heretofore taken by such officers are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 


Section 5. Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 







 


PASSED AND ADOPTED this _____ day of __________________, 20_____ by the following vote: 


AYES:      


NOES:      


ABSENT:     


                                                                             
Name 


                                                                             
Title 


                                                                             
ENTITY Secretary 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







                                                            


 


 
Special District Risk Management Authority       Page 1:3 Tel 800.537.7790   
                                                                                                                                                               Fax 916.231.4111 


                                                                                                                                                                                                      www.sdrma.org 


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 


 
THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (HEREAFTER “MEMORANDUM”) IS 


ENTERED INTO BY AND BETWEEN THE SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT 
AUTHORITY (HEREAFTER “SDRMA”) AND THE PARTICIPATING PUBLIC ENTITY 


(HEREAFTER “ENTITY”) WHO IS SIGNATORY TO THIS MEMORANDUM. 


 WHEREAS, on August 1, 2006, SDRMA was appointed administrator for the purpose of enrolling small 
public entities typically having 250 or less employees into the CSAC - Excess Insurance Authority Health’s 
("CSAC-EIA Health") Small Group Health Benefits Program (hereinafter "PROGRAM"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the terms and conditions of the PROGRAM as well as benefit coverage, rates, assessments, 
and premiums are governed by CSAC-EIA Health Committee for the PROGRAM (the "COMMITTEE") and not 
SDRMA; and.  
 
 WHEREAS, ENTITY desires to enroll and participate in the PROGRAM. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, SDRMA and ENTITY agree as follows:  
      
1. PURPOSE. ENTITY is signatory to this MEMORANDUM for the express purpose of enrolling in the 


PROGRAM.  
 
2. ENTRY INTO PROGRAM. ENTITY shall enroll in the PROGRAM by making application through SDRMA 


which shall be subject to approval by the PROGRAM's Underwriter and governing documents and in 
accordance with applicable eligibility guidelines. 


 
3. MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT. PROGRAM is designed to provide an alternative health benefit solution to all 


participants of the ENTITY including active employees, retired employees (optional), dependents 
(optional) and public officials (optional). ENTITY public officials may participate in the PROGRAM only 
if they are currently being covered and their own ENTITY’s enabling act, plans and policies allow it. 
ENTITY must contribute at least the minimum percentage required by the eligibility requirements 


 
4. PREMIUMS. ENTITY understands that premiums and rates for the PROGRAM are set by the 


COMMITTEE. ENTITY will remit monthly premiums based upon rates established for each category of 
participants and the census of covered employees, public officials, dependents and retirees. 


 
Rates for the ENTITY and each category of participant will be determined by the COMMITTEE 
designated for the PROGRAM based upon advice from its consultants and/or a consulting Benefits Actuary 
and insurance carriers. In addition, SDRMA adds an administrative fee to premiums and rates set by the 
COMMITTEE for costs associated with administering the PROGRAM. Rates may vary depending upon 
factors including, but not limited to, demographic characteristics, loss experience of all public entities 
participating in the PROGRAM and differences in benefits provided (plan design), if any.   


 
a. SDRMA will administrate a billing to ENTITY each month, with payments due by the date specified 


by SDRMA. Payments received after the specified date will accrue penalties. Premiums are based on a 
full month and there are no partial months or prorated premiums.  


 
b. ENTITY must send notification of termination of benefits for a covered employee or dependent to 


SDRMA within 31 days of the date of termination. Benefits will be terminated the last day of the 
month in which the termination occurred. If the termination notice is received after 31 days of the date 
of termination, the request must be approved by the PROGRAM to terminate coverage. All requests 
may not be approved; therefore participants may need to wait for open enrollment to elect the change 
(termination). If the termination is due to an employee terminating employment, if not approved to 
retroactively terminate coverage, coverage will be terminated prospectively at the end of the month.  







                                                            


 


 
Special District Risk Management Authority       Page 2:3 Tel 800.537.7790   
                                                                                                                                                               Fax 916.231.4111 


                                                                                                                                                                                                      www.sdrma.org 


5. BENEFITS. Benefits provided to ENTITY participants shall be as set forth in ENTITY’s Plan Summary for 
the PROGRAM and as agreed upon between the ENTITY and its recognized employee organizations as 
applicable. Not all plan offerings will be available to ENTITY, and plans requested by ENTITY must be 
submitted to PROGRAM underwriter for approval. 


 
6. COVERAGE DOCUMENTS. Except as otherwise provided herein, CSAC-EIA Health documents outlining the 


coverage provided, including terms and conditions of coverage, are controlling with respect to the coverage 
of the PROGRAM.    


 
7.  PROGRAM FUNDING. It is the intent of this MEMORANDUM to provide for a fully funded PROGRAM by 


any or all of the following:  pooling risk; purchasing individual stop loss coverage to protect the pool from 
large claims; and purchasing aggregate stop loss coverage. 


 
8. ASSESSMENTS. Should the PROGRAM not be adequately funded for any reason, pro-rata assessments to 


the ENTITY may be utilized to ensure the approved funding level for applicable policy periods.  Any 
assessments which are deemed necessary to ensure approved funding levels shall be made upon the 
determination and approval of the COMMITTEE in accordance with the following: 


 
a. Assessments/dividends will be used sparingly. Generally, any over/under funding will be factored into 


renewal rates. 
 


b. If a dividend/assessment is declared, allocation will be based upon each ENTITY’S proportional share 
of total premiums paid for the preceding 3 years.  An ENTITY must be a current participant to receive 
a dividend, except upon termination of the PROGRAM and distribution of assets. 


 
c. ENTITY will be liable for assessments for 12 months following withdrawal from the PROGRAM. 


 
d. Fund equity will be evaluated on a total PROGRAM-wide basis as opposed to each year standing on 


its own. 
 
9. WITHDRAWAL. ENTITY may withdraw subject to the following condition: ENTITY shall notify SDRMA 


and the PROGRAM in writing of its intent to withdraw at least 90 days prior to their requested withdrawal 
date. ENTITY may rescind its notice of intent to withdraw. Once ENTITY withdraws from the 
PROGRAM, there is a 3-year waiting period to come back into the PROGRAM, and the ENTITY will be 
subject to underwriting approval again. 


 
10. LIAISON WITH SDRMA. Each ENTITY shall maintain staff to act as liaison with the SDRMA and between 


the ENTITY and the SDRMA’S designated PROGRAM representative. 
 
11. GOVERNING LAW. This MEMORANDUM shall be governed in accordance with the laws of the State of 


California.   
 
12. VENUE. Venue for any dispute or enforcement shall be in Sacramento, California. 
 
13. ATTORNEY FEES. The prevailing party in any dispute shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney 


fees. 
 
14. COMPLETE AGREEMENT. This MEMORANDUM together with the related PROGRAM documents 


constitutes the full and complete agreement of the ENTITY.  
 
15.  SEVERABILITY. Should any provision of this MEMORANDUM be judicially determined to be void or 


unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any remaining provision. 
 
16.  AMENDMENT OF MEMORANDUM. This MEMORANDUM may be amended by the SDRMA Board of 


Directors and such amendments are subject to approval of ENTITY’S signatory to this MEMORANDUM.  







                                                            


 


 
Special District Risk Management Authority       Page 3:3 Tel 800.537.7790   
                                                                                                                                                               Fax 916.231.4111 


                                                                                                                                                                                                      www.sdrma.org 


Any ENTITY who fails or refuses to execute an amendment to this MEMORANDUM shall be deemed to 
have withdrawn from the PROGRAM on the next annual renewal date. 


 
17.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This MEMORANDUM shall become effective upon the signing of this 


MEMORANDUM by the ENTITY and Chief Executive Officer or Board President of SDRMA. 
 
18.  EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS. This MEMORANDUM may be executed in several counterparts, each of 


which shall be an original, all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 


In Witness Whereof, the undersigned have executed the MEMORANDUM as of the date set forth below. 
 
 
 


   
 
Dated:       By:       
        


Special District Risk  
Management Authority 


 
 
Dated:       By:       
 
       Sweetwater Springs Water District  
 
               
 
 





		Item V-B - District Visiion and Dental Plan Changes

		Item V-B.1 - Res 18-10 for Delta Dental and VSP through SDRMA

		Item V-B.2 - MOU with SDRMA for Health Benefits-Sweetwater Springs Water District






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: July 5, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF WARRANT FOR SDRMA EXPENSE FOR THE 
WALLER LITIGATION  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding the payment of $16,069.93 to SDRMA for legal expenses related to the Waller 
litigation, approve the payment of $16,069.93 for those expenses, and provide direction 
to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $16,069.93 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the June Board meeting the Board removed the payment of $16,069.93 for the 
legal expenses incurred by SDRMA for the cost of the Waller litigation, litigation that 
was initiated by a customer for damages received during a District capital 
improvement project (water line replacement) on Guerneville Lane.  The Board 
asked for additional information on why the claim was not defended by the 
contractor for that project, Piazza Construction.  Staff contacted SDRMA about this, 
had a phone conversation on this topic and received the attached explanation letter.  
In short, SDRMA tried to tender to the contractor's insurance, was refused by the 
insurance company and felt it was more cost effective to just do the litigation in-
house rather than litigate the tender and then perhaps have to do the Waller 
litigation as well.     
 
 
  









		Item V-C - Payment of SDRMA Warrant for Waller

		Item V-C.1 - Letter dated June 11, 2018 from SDRMA






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 5, 2018  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE 2017 - 2018 ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the 2017-2018 
Annual Review. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District does an annual review each year at the July meeting.  This is the sixth year 
that we are using this format, and, as before, it is still a work in progress and 
comments and suggestions are welcome.  Periodic review of District activities is a good 
check on what we are doing and with Board concurrence, we will continue the practice.    
 
This past year has been dominated, for me, by my recovery from my injury.  I thank 
everyone for working with me during this process.  Another big issue that continues to 
affect this area is the aftermath of the October fires - that has affected all County-
related activities and has spilled over onto everything related to the County, including 
us.   
 







Exhibit A: Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual 
Review, Fiscal Year 2017-2018 


 
The annual review is a look back of the achievements of the 
past fiscal year and a look forward to what we are expecting 
for the coming fiscal year.   
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide 
its customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and 
cost-effective manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the 
community and environment.  The District provides water distribution and 
maintenance services to five townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO 
ENSURE EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
FY 2018 Achievements:   


 Eighth year that 3% increase to Base Rate and Water Usage Charges 
was approved; Sixth Year of 3% increase to Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge.   


 Reserve Policy met by FY 2018 Budget. 
 Water sales picked up during FY 18; will this trend continue?  
 Worked with USDA Bond process.    


 
FY 2019 Projections: 


 Investigate/monitor need for rate increase in May 2019, effective July 
2019.  This will be the ninth year of the nine year plan; need to review 
the plan.  Is the $500,000 target for CIP funding still appropriate?  
State Loans paid off soon.  


 Review financial planning model to ensure it is meeting current 
financial planning needs; revise where appropriate.   


 Meet Reserve Policy with FY 2020 Budget. 
 Complete USDA Bond process with completion of 2018 CIP  


 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE 
WATER WITH FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, 
MANAGED AND MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
FY 2018 Achievements: 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2017-2018  2 
 


 Compliance with California Division of Drinking Water (formerly 
Department of Public Health (DPH)) regulations achieved.  Annual 
report submitted according to schedule.   


 The Drought is over but monthly reporting continues.   
 2017 CIP Phase 1 (River Road from Foothill to Rio Nido) completed.   
 Award of contract for the 2018 CIP (completion of Old River 


Road/River Road Project) in April 2018.   
 Total Leaks for calendar year 2016 at 111 (target was 100). 
 System leakage at 18.4% (May 2018) (target was 20%). 
 Completed validated water audit in November 2017. 
 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) completed in October 2016, 


received letter of acceptance in FY18.  
 Coastland modeling to evaluate Guernewood Park Resort impacts in 


progress. 
 
FY 2019 Projections: 
 


 2018 CIP should be completed in fall 2018; James Piazza injury makes 
completion date uncertain. 


 Small CIP project in 2019 - replacement of green sand filters at Monte 
Rio Treatment Plant.   


 Total leaks for calendar year 2016 at 100.   
 System leakage at 20%.  Continue use correlation equipment on 


regular basis to identify and fix leaks.  Review use of State Water 
Audit methodology to improve reporting of system losses; develop 
validation process 


 Continue use of automated map.  Become better at it; start making 
needed revisions.   


 Conclude Guernewood Park Resort evaluation.   
   
 


GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS 
FOR ALL REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
FY 2017 Achievements:   
 


 Emergency Action Plan was reviewed and updated in October 2017.     
 No flood preparation meeting this year because of the aftermath of 


October fires.   Did have meeting with Cal Water on local emergency 
planning.     


 2nd year of flooding procedures went well; river was down mostly.  
 


 
FY 2019 Projections: 
 


 Update of Emergency Action Plan in October 2018. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2017-2018  3 
 


 Participate in County Emergency Operations communications/meetings 
in 2018. 


 Continue efforts to communicate with local agencies re emergency 
preparedness.  


 Work with local efforts for specific plans (Wild Fire Preparation?)   
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
FY 2017 Achievements: 


   
 Field staff oversight of 2018 CIP. 
 35 in-house projects totaling 1969.75 man-hours (up from 20 projects 


and 851.5 hours).   
 Staff participation in wild fire response - one active participant, two 


staff directly affected by fires.     
 Third year of implementation of new MOU; it went well. 
 Staff meetings on changes to vision and dental plans. 


  
FY 2019 Projections: 
 


 Continue staff training efforts. 
 Oversee completion of 2018 CIP construction. 
 Oversee replacement of green sand filters at Monte Rio facility. 
 Continue focus on in-house projects. 
 Participate in more webinars and workshops. 


 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC AND GOVERNMENTAL 
OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 
 
FY 2018 Achievements: 
 


 Meeting summary sent to local media on monthly basis.   
 Website updated on at least monthly basis. 
 Continued display in lobby that shows examples of pipes that are being 


replaced by capital projects – good public response to this.   
 Making effort to provide outreach with local Chambers regarding the 


drought response. 
 Making monthly reports to State on required drought response 


information.   
 2015 UWMP completed in October 2016, received letter of acceptance 


in 2018.   
 
FY 2019 Projections: 
 


 Get healthy 
 Continue with meeting summaries.   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2017-2018  4 
 


 Look for opportunities to provide community leadership/participation 
on water-related issues.   


 Continue to look for ways to make website more useful. 
   


 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND 
INFORMATION 
 
FY 2018 Achievements: 
 


 Communicated injury status and recovery progress.  
 


 
FY 2019 Projections: 
 


 Review sections of Policies and Procedures for revision. 
 Evaluate facility tour opportunities. 
   


 





		Item V-D - 2018 Annual Review

		Meeting Date: July 5, 2018 



		Item V-D.1 - 2018 Annual Review Report






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 5, 2018   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in May were 21,220 units (48.7 AF, 
(Guerneville cycle) and production was 60.6 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production this month were higher (44.1 AF and 58.9 AF, respectively).  The water lost 
percentage continues on a dropping trend.   Figure 1 shows sales, production and % 
difference for the District.     


 
2. Leaks:  In May we had 8 total leaks and spent 76 man-hours on them.   That's more leaks 


and man-hours compared to the prior month and fewer leaks and similar man hours  
compared to May one year ago (15 and 74).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks 
separately with a total leaks line as well.     


   
3. Russian River Flow:   Flow is staying on the 2009-2016 average recession curve as shown 


in Figure 3 which is average daily Russian River flow for the current year compared to earlier 
years and the 2009-2016 average.   Flow has gone below 100 cfs and will likely stay down 
there for the summer.         


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  Going slow; Open Space has a committee hearing on this in 


July. I have distributed the draft conservation easement for review and comments.  They 
look inclusive to me.   


 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project:  There's a meeting with the interested parties in July.     
  
6. 2018 CIP:  James Piazza had a serious accident which required hospitalization and surgery.  


He's an active participant in his company's construction efforts and this will slow down the 
project.  We are wishing James a speedy and successful recovery. 


 
7. Water Tax:  A draft letter has been prepared for President de la Plata's signature.   
 
8. In-House Construction Projects: Five in-house construction projects were reported for 


June: Park Avenue Tank repairs (80 man-hours), Jumper repair on Hwy 116 (6.25 man-
hours), repaired service line on Neeley Rd (11.5 man-hours), 1" service upgrade on Sunset 
Ave. (10.5 man-hours), 2" valve and flushout installed on Bohemian Hwy (9 man-hours).   


 
9. Small Claims Court Action: This case was continued until August 15.   
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
July 5, 2018 
 
10. Monte Rio Bridge: Field Manager Kevin Gilman and I participated in a meeting on the 


replacement of the Monte Rio Bridge on June 25.  The Bridge team is conducting outreach 
prior to a community meeting in August or September.  A principal issue for the District is 
who pays for the replacement of the water line that is on the current Bridge.  The Bridge 
construction will start, at the earliest, in 2022 and will take two years for completion.  A 
major issue is what to do with the current bridge - it will stay in place during construction to 
provide access and may be demolished after that.   


 
11.   Gantt Chart:  The Gantt Chart has been revised to include the new fiscal year.  Please 


review it for completeness.  No tasks or events are in the Chart for July, although the 2018 
CIP should be underway and it isn't because of the James Piazza injury.         


 
 


 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since October 2013 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Oct-13 Apr-14 Oct-14 Apr-15 Oct-15 Apr-16 Oct-16 Apr-17 Oct-17 Apr-18


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
July 5, 2018 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


Mar-
18


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2018 Compared to 
Earlier Years, and the 2009-16 Average, Updated June 26, 2018


0


500


1,000


1,500


2,000


2,500


3,000


3,500


4,000


4,500


5,000


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


c
fs


)


2013


2015


09-16 Avg


2017


2018


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







 
May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 FY20+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2018 CIP Phase Award of Contract


        2018 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


        2019 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: July 5, 2018  



